Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLFP

Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Signode India Limited
Report on the audit of the Standalone financial statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Signode India Limited (“the
Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of changes in equity, Statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other
explanatory information

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and total comprehensive income
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

4. We draw your attention to Note 39 to the financial statements, which describes the management’s assessment
of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the Company. The
management believes that no adjustments are required in the financial statements as it does not impact the
current financial year, however, in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as lock-down
restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.) and highly uncertain economic environment,
a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as
they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

6.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
1o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frands and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 'u.mun‘ﬂng policies; ‘making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation ‘and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ecror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are approprlate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

o  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conelusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

a.
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directars is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A",

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinicn and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 29(a) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2020 for which there were no material
foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any derivative contracts.

iii, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2020.
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13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration it1 accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schredule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountant LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants
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Dhiraj Kumar

Partner

Membership Number: 060466
UDIN: 20060466AAAADH9286

Place: Hyderabad
Date: October 05, 2020
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Signode
India Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Pagetof 2

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause )
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Signode India Limited
(“the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finaneial Control: Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAL). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls thalt were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
aceuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing deemed to be preseribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals and both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit
of internal finaneial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

N

T",__#i'_'_:n ( 1|-.."='~-,‘,!“‘\

r%-"";l'."
GG

¥ Hyderabad * 2=

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial vontrols system with reference to finaneial statements,

e — =

PN AAG- 4355~
o~ )

AN

Py

\&

e
— —



Anuexire A to Indepenndent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the menbers of Signode
India Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Page2 of 2

Meaning of Internal IFinancial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance vegarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements Tor external purposes in aceordance with genevally aceepted accounting priveiples. A compnoy's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements ineludes those poligies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements inaccordanee with generally aceepled
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable asgurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have 2 material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to finanecial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or impraper management overtide of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may ocenr and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the visk that the
internal financial eontrol controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential eomponients of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Also refer to paragraph 4 of our main audit report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Signode
India Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020

(2) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation, of Property, Plant & Equipment.

—-

(b) The Property, Plant & Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, Pursuant to the programime, a
portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no
material diserepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3A on Property, Plant & Equipment to the
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

R The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties have been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the Management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties,
these have substaatially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as comnpared to book records were not material

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 ofthe Act. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

iv. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans and
investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

v, The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75
and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the preseribed accounts and records have
been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities. Also refer note 29(c) to the financial statements regarding management's
assessiment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

Further, for the menth of March 2020, the company has paid Goods and Service Tax and filed GSTR 3B
(after the due date but) within the timelines allowed by Ministry of Finance (Department of Revenue)
Central Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs under the Notification Number. 32/2020 — Central Tax
dated April 3, 2020 on fulfilment of conditions specified therein.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there are no dues of goods and service tax which have nat heen deposited on aceount of any dispute.
The particulars of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value
added tax as at March 31, 2020 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors' Report
Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even dale to the members of Signode India Limited
on the standalone financial staternents for the year ended March 31, 2020

Page20f3
Name of the | Nature of dues Amount Periodto | Forum where the |
statute (Rs.) whiich the | dispute is pending
I amount -
- - relates B
Central Excise Tax | Excise Duty 47.60 2007-11 CESTAT, Ahmedabad
Customs Act Customs Duty 19.44 _1995-96 Chennai, High Court
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 15.16 2009-11 Commissioner (Appeals),
= | Vapi
14.21 2010-11 Commissioner,
o Ahmedabad
an 25.75 2004-12 CESTAT, Ahmedabad
Various Sales Tax | Central Sales Tax & VAT 6.71 1999-02 Commissioner (Appeals),
Acts Kolkata N
Central Sales Tax & VAT 16.29 1999-00 Commissioner (Appeals),
— 2012414 Rourkela o
Central Sales Tax & VAT 84.54 2008-14 Commissioner (Appeals),
Andhra Pradesh
Central Sales Tax & VAT 4.60 1997-98 Commissioner (Appeals),
2005-06 Chennai
Central Sales Tax & VAT 146.79 2009-13 Commissioner (Appeals),
| — Jamshedpur B
Central Sales Tax & VAT 1,630.95 2008-16 Commissioner (Appeals),
- Maharashtra
Central Sales Tax & VAT 17.32 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeals),
Silvassa
Central Sales Tax & VAT 54.49 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeals),
| Haryana
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 235.44 2013-14 ITAT I
1961 7,290.19 2014-15 & | Commissioner of Income
2016-17 | Tax (Appeals)

viii.  According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation givento us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or
Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

ix. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

X. The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

Xi. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud hy the Company or on the Company
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the Management.

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date te the members of Signode India Limited
on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Page 3 of 3

xii.  As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 arc not applicable to it, the provisions
of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

i. The Company has ¢ntered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections
177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

—

xi

Xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons eonnected with
him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse 8& Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants
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Dhiraj Kumar N
Partner

Membership Number: 060466
UDIN: 20060466AAAADH9286

Place: Hyderabad
Date: October 05, 2020

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

For Signode India Limited

Company Secretary



Signode (ndta Linited

Siandalone Balance Sheet as at March 21, 2020
Particulars o __! —— 1 As.al Asat
ol | Farele 31, 2020 Mt 31, 2019
) o - Zin lakhs T fakhn
AlassETs
I [Non=cuirent assels ‘
(&) Proparty, planl and scuipment 3A l 16333 2 20,118
(by Capital wark -in-progisss A 260 81 | GR1 33
{¢) Geodwiil 3R 48 839 88 4R 869 88
(d) Other Intangitie ass 3A 248 87 278 M
(e} Right-cl-use-zssels ap 218338
(f) Financiai assets
(3) Inveslments 4 3.106 75 310675
(i} Other financiais assets 5 1,474 68 1,332 18
(g} Other ron-current assels 6 3,324 61 3.434 93
(h) Non-Current tax asset (nel} 18 1,054.80 3G8 60
Total non-current assets 79,857_.33 f 78.,288.12
Il {Current assets
{a} Inventories 7 14,745 39 14 B41 03
{b) Financial assels
(i) Trade receivables 8 30,616 19 28,309 01
(i} Cash and cash egulvalents g 8.62¢ 42 3,139 15
{iiiy Other financials assets 5 745 48 902,96
(¢} Conlract assets 10 7,500 94 5426 14
(c) Other current assels 6 2,130 90 2,215 77
Total current assets 64,368.31 54,834.06
Total assets - 1,44,225 64 1,33,422.18 |
B IEQUITY AN LIABILITIES
| {Equity
(a) Equity share capilal 11 741529 8,253 81
(b) Other equily 12 $3,333.34 40.300.48
Total equity 1,00,748.63 ag 583.10
1§ |Liabilities
Nen-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 - 188 10
(ify Lease liabilities 3D 349 83
(b) Provisions 14 33378
(c) Deferred tax liabiities (net) 15 $.355.35 |
Total non-current liabilities 10,038.,96 5 265 39
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabililies
(i) Borrowings 13 2,835 60 £.000.00
(i) Lease liabiilies 3D 400 08 -
(iii) Trade payables 16 27.50572 20,2249 15
(iv) Other financial liabiiilies 17 909 56 1,240 75
(b) Contract liabiliies 18 1,039 37 712 32
{c) Provisions 14 183,50 9¢ 88
(c) Olher current liabilities 20 564.22 101159
Total current liabilities 33,438.05 28,293.69
Total liabilities . A3,A477.01 34,559.08
Total equity and liabilities 1,44,225 64 1,33.122.18
Accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements 11041
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Signode India Limited

Istatoments

Statortiont of Standalonu Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Note Na. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs Ein lakhs
1 [Revenue [ uperatians o a 21 1.32,979 36 1,34,831 53 |
[l Qilter income 22 1,462 80 1,081 53
Il |Total Incame (1 + 11} 1,34,442.16 1,35,913.06
IV |Expensas
{a) Cost of materials consumed 23 a 51,003 98 49,303 18
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade 23.b 28,181 45 30,729.40
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 23.c (780,13) 669.49
slock-in-trade
(d) Employes benefils expense 24 21624 28 20,175 96
(e) Finance costs 25 1,083.08 811.80
(1) Depreciation, amordisation and impairment expense 3C 2,673.52 2.383.68
(9) Other expenses 26 9,431.57 10.476.76
Totil expenses 1.13,217.76 1,14,550.27
vV |Profit before tax (Il - IV} 21,224.41 2136279
VI |Tax expense: 27
(a) Current tax 564976 5,588 36
(b) Deferred tax 1,767.45 1.950.36
(¢} Taxes related {o prior years 6547 1.29
7.482.68 7,540.04
VIl | Profit far the year (V - V1) 13 741.73 13,822.78
VIl |Other comprehensive Income
{AY  [Items that will not be re-classlfied to profit or loss:
Remensuremenls of defined benefit abligation (net) (160.96) (96 32)
[ncome tax relating to ilems that will not be re-classified to profil of loss 56.25 33,66
Total other comprehensive income (net of tax) {104.71) (52.5@1‘
Tetal comprehenslve Income for the year (VII+VIII) 13.637,02 13,760.12
1% | Earnings per equlty share (of Rs. 10/-each)- Basic and diluted 28 17.31 14.61
Accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financlal 1to 41
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Signode ndia Lbnited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2820

(€ i laklis)

Particulars ¥or the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2049
A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profil before tax 21,224 4° 2136278
Allyiztarents fis
Depy inr amortisalon and impairmeni expense 267352 2,387 33
Unrealised exchanga 1oss / {gain) (nelj (299.20) 843 94
Interest cxpense 1 083.08 B1189
Bad debls and advances wrillen off 76561 56.92
Provision for loss alowance of l-ade receivables {132.64} 612.18
Cash discount received {12 74 {146}
(Profif)fioss on sale of fixed assels {nef) (1122} 58.36
Dividend incomae {290 71§
Interest incone (369 35) (659,12}
Liahilites no longer roquired weitlen back (374) {174)
340248 3.348.21
Operaling profit belore working capitai changes 24 626 B3 24.711.C0
Gihanges o working captial
Adjusiments for (increase) / decrease in operaling asseis:
nventories 95 64 (2,576 93)
Trade receivables (2.640.37) (2,509 68)
Qiher finaricial asseis 83,69 441720
Conlract assels (2,074.80) (5,426.14)
Qtter assels (1,201 429 853 11}
Adjustments for increase / (decrease} in operating liabililies:
Trade payables 7,241 13 1,072.81
Cther financizal iiabilives {95.08) (1,540.89)
Conlracl liahilities 32705 71232
Other liabililies (447 37} {507 53)
Provisions 168.87 (21222)
146744 (7,424 2?|
Casl generaled (rom operalions 206,1i54.93 7206
et income tax (paid) (474610} i,
Nt cash flow from [ (used in) operating activities (A) 21,336.23 10,429.90 | sn
#. Cash flow from investing activitles
Paymanls for propery, planl and equipments including capila! advances (1,815,570 (3,023 71)
Proceads from sale of properly, plant and equipment 50,48 30.22
Dividend recelved 290.71 -
Imerest received 300.44 749.59
(873.84) (2,240 90)
Net cash flaw from / (used In) investing activities (B) (873.94] (2,243,50)
. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from / (Repaymenl) of shori-term berrowings {2,164 40) 5,000.00
Buyback of equily shares {10,650 00) (27,000 00)
Huybuck expenses (801.44) (1,371.45)
Proceeds from / (Repaymenl; of long-term borrowings 48.60
|Principte Payment of lease Liabilities (318.81)
|imerest paid (1,090 /iy (79317)
(15 02540) (24 116 02}
et cash llow from .'_{;_;Lsnd In} financing activities (C) (15,025.44) (24,116.02}
Notincrease / (decrease) in Cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+C) 5,438.81 {15,930.02)
Gash and cash eauivalenls at lhe beginning of lhe year 3.138.15 19,106 .93
Effects of exchange rale changes on cash and cash equivalents 5147 {47 1
Gash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 862943 3.139.15
Feconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Nul Cash and cash equivalents | 8,620.43 3.138.15
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1to 40 |
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Signode India Lirniled
Notes Lo the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 21 tarch 2020

General information
Sigaade ndin Lin
2013 geg cable in India It
Inc. USA The Company is engaged |

¢ Lampany; is a g i Il ane-August VL 2000 under N p 4 piife Coinpons Al
holding company a d, Uritbess sarsgidenns st the LA i
ihe business of industial packaging and manudativi: ol siiap, A "
and equipmend thal are usec lo apply llie bulk paskaging materals The Cormpiny Lates W kot dum | intiational morkets Tho addreases
ol its regislered and principal place of business is 316 Floor, Jyothi Majeslic 2120084 Rotd Nui2, Hills; Hyderahad The Company (s.the
leading Indushial Packaging solutions provider having manu(actuling 1ocations at Rudratam Silvassa, Rudrapur, Bangalore and Dahej

| Ly, pes

2 Significant accounting palicies

21 Basis of preparation of financiaf staterments and Statement of conipliance
he Standalorie financial slatements are prepared un an accrual basis undec istorical cost convention except tor cerain financiat instruments, nel
defined benefit asseldiabilily which are measured al fai value. The Standalone financial stalements hiave becn prepared in accordance wilh Indian
Accounting Slendards (Ind AS) nolified under Seclion 133 of thie Companies Act, 2043 (lhe *Ac'} read with the Companies (Indian Accoutiliog
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Gompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendmen! Rules, 2016
Accounting paticies have been consislenlly applied lo all the years presenled excepl where 3 newly issued acoounling slandard is inilialiy adapted or
a revision to an exisling accounting standard requires a change in the accouating policy hitherto inuse

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The company has apptied the fallowing standards and amendments for the first time for their anrual reporling period commencing 1 April 2019;

i. Ind AS 116. Leases

ii, Long-term Inlerest in Assoiates and Joint Venlutes — Amendment 1o Ind AS 26, Investments i1 Assaciales and Joint venlures

iiUncenain Income Tax Trealmenl —Appendix C o Ind AS 12. income Taxes

iv. Plan Amendment, Cunailment or Selllement ~- Amendment lo Ind AS 19, Employee Benefils

v Amendment fo Ind AS 103, Business Combinations and IndAS 111, Joint Arrangements

vi Amendment fo ind AS 12, income Taxes

vii. Amendment o Ind AS 23 , Borrowing cosls

The {ompany had lo change its accounling policies as a result of adoption of Ind AS 116 Thig is disclosed in nole 30 The other amendments lisled
above did nol have any impacl on the amounls recognised in prior periods and are not expecied to significanlly affecl the current or fultre periods

2.2 Use of estimates

The praparalion of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires ho g 1t 1o make estimate and pions Ihat affeck the
reporied amount of assels and lisbiliies as at the Balance Sheet dale. rapeded of rev and exp: for the year and disclosures al
eontingant liablliies as 8l the Balance Sneet dale. The eslimales and assumplions used |n the secompanying financial nenls are besed upon

the management's evaiuation of the relevanl facts and circumslances &s at the date of lhe I_‘m'nncml stataments. Actual resulls could differ figm
these estimates Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on a periodic basis Revisions lo accounling estimales, if any, are recognized
in the year in which the eslimates are revised and In any fulure years affected

2.3 Inventories
Invenlories are valued al lhe lower of cost and the nel realisabie vaiue after providing for obsoiescence and other losses, where considered
necessary Cost of inventories are dajermined on welghted Bverage basis. Cost includes all charges in twinging the geods o the point of sale,
ineluding oclroi and other levies, transit insurance Woirk-In-progress and finished goods include appropriate propartion of everheads as applicabila.

Nel realisable value represents lhe estimated selling price for inventories less all estimaled costs of cornpletion and cosls necessary to make the
sale

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash al banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits net of bank overdraft with an original

malurity of three monlhs or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of clialiges in value,
For the purposes of the cask flow stelement, cash and cash equivalenls include cash on hand, cash in banks and shori-lerm deposils ne{ of bank
overdraft.

2.5 Cash Flow Statement
Cash fows are reparted using the Indirecl melhod, wheraby profit / {loss) before tax for the year, is adjusled for the effects of transaclions of non-

cash nalure and any deferrals or @scruals of past or fulure cash receipls or paymenls. The cash flows trom operating, investing and financing
activilies of the Company are segregated based on the available information

2.6  Propurty, plant and equipment
Propeity, plant and equipinanl are staled at cost less accumulaled dapreciation and seeumulaled impairment Ipss, it any Cosl of acguisilion or

canstruction is inclusive of freight. dulies, laxes, olher direclly allriputible incidental expenses lo bring lhe assel 1o lhe locafion and condilion
necessary for il lo be capable of operaling in the marner inlended by the mar:agement

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate assel, as appropriate. only wheit it is probable that future
economic benelils associaled with the ilem will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably The carrying a:nount of any
companent accounted for as a separate assel is derecognized when replaced All olher repairs and maintenance are charged lo Statemenl of Frofit
and Loss diring the year in which they are incurred

The Company depieciates properiy, plant and equipment over their eslimaled useful lives using 1he stiaight line melhod. Based on the lechnical
assessment of usaful life. certain items of propeny plant and squipment are being depreciated ovit Lseful lives different from the praseribed uselul
lives usder Schadule || to (he Companies Acl, 2013 Managemenl believes Ihat such estmated useful fives are realislic ‘and reflecl fair
approximation of [ne period over which the assets are likely (o be used The estimaled uselul lives of assels are as follows:

)

Al JI./ ()ﬂn‘ﬁ
N 3040368163220
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cd usein Lvos

Usclut Life
30 Years
Equip:ient 10-15 Years
Office Equipmenl 35 Years
Vehicles 8-10 Years
Furnlure and Fixtures 10 Years

iy Estimaled Residual Value 0-5% ol Qriginal cosl

Depreciation is calculated or @ pro rala basis from the date of additions, except in cases of assels cosling up to Rs 5000 cach. where each: assetis
fully depreciated in the yea: of purchase. On assels sotd, discarded efc during lhe year, depreciation is provided up to the dale of salc/discard
Gains and losses on disposals are delermined by compasing proceeds with catying amounl These are included in Slatement of Profil and Loss
under Other Income/other expenscs

Cfilil vtk an-proqrisss

Projects under which properly, plant and equipmenl are not ye! ready for their inlended use aie carmed al cosl, compnsing direc! cost and related
incidental expenses

Depreciation melhods, uscful fives and residual values are reviewed periodically al each hnancial year end and adjusted prospeclively as
appropriale.

2.7 Intangible Assels

itnngile asacts sequited i § Busingss coinl alll
Inlangible assels acquired in a business combinalion and recognised separately from geodwili are inilially recognised at Lheir fair value al lhe

acuisition dale (which is regarded as theijr cost).
Subsagquenl to initial recagnition, Inlanglble assets acquired in a business combinalion are reporied at cost less accumulaled amorlisation and

accumulaled impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets thal aie acquired separately
Goodwill recagnized In @ business combinallon is carried al their fair value at the time of acquisition fess accumulated impairment losses.

Listil e of

Asset Uselul Life
Non-Competition Fees 5 Years
Order Boak 1 Year

2,8  Revenue recognilion

(i} The Company cams revenue from;

- Sale of goods

- Sale of packing equipment

- Provision of services

Revenue Is recognised when (or as) lhe Cornpeny salisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised goods or services (i.e an assel) loa
cusiomer.

(i) Satisfaction of perft hce obllgations over time:
Revenus from sale of ¢onlract packaging are recagnised over a period of lime

Revenue Is recognised over time where the Iransfer of control of goods or services lakes place over fime by measuring lhe progress towards
complete satisfaction of ihal perf 1ce obligatian, if one of the following criterfa are mel:

- The cuslomer simultaneously receives and cangumes lhe benelits pravided by the anlitys performance as the entily performs

- The enlity's performanca creates or enhances &n asset that the customay controls as tha assst s treated or enhanced; o

. The enfity's patformance does nol creale an asset with an alternative use to the entity, and the enliy has an enfarcable righl lo payment for
performance compleied to dale.

(li) Satlsfaction of perfor @ obljgations at a point in time:
Revanue fram sale of goods and services Is recogrised at a paint in ime upon transfer of controt of an asset 10 the custamer:

In respect of cases where Lhe transfar of control does not take place wver @ period of lime, the company recognites it & poini in lime when i
salisfies performance obligations.

The perfarmance obligalion is salisfied when (he cuslomer ablains conlrol of lhe assel. The indicators for ransfer of control include the foliowing:
- Company has transferred the physical possession of the asset

- The cuslamer has the legal right to the asset

- The Company has a present fight to payment fot tha asset

. The Cuslomar has (he significant risks and reyzards of ownership of the assel,

{Iv) Measuremenl
Rirveinue is recogrised al the amount of Iransaciion price that is allocated lo the performance cbligation, The uansaction price is the amount of
consideralion lo which lhe Company expecls o be entilled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services 1o a customer, excluding amount

collecled on behalf of third parlies

Other Intoitie:
Income in respect af inlerest on fixed deposit wilh banks is recognized on accrual basis al the rate al which such enlillement accrues Royally
incorme is accounted on accrual basis

2.9 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any confract thal gives rise to a financiai asse! of one entily and a financial liability or eauily inslrumenl of another enlity

(a) Financial assets

{1 milial recognilion and measurement
Al al recognition, financial asset is measured al ils fair value plus. in the case of a financial assel nol al fair value through: profit or loss,
{ransaclion cosls that are direclly atributable Lo the acquisilion of lhe financial asset Transaclion costs of linancial assels cairied al {air value
lhrough profit or loss are expersed in profit or loss
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(iv)

(b)
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(1)

(c)
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Subseguent mezsur
For purposc
a) al amorlized sost, or

by al (air value through offier comprehensive oems, or

r) at air value thiugh profit or 10ss.

The classificalion depends an the enlify’s business medel far manag:ng \he financial sssels and the contisclual lerms of the cash flows

W mieasulemen! financial assals are classilied in tokowing categories

of subsequer

lg of principal and

Junonilzed cant Assets st are held for collectien of coritnciual cash flows whete those cash fows represent solely puys
effective inleresl rate

rad At vonized cost. Inlerest ncome trom these financia: assels is included in fiiance income uslng

it ma.
method (EiR)

Inreagh ethier o come (LVOC, Assels (hat e helid o erllechian al contraciuat cash Guws and for seling the tnancs

ol wners (he assels’ cash sprizaant anlely pryments of principal amt islmest. e weasred al G value hrough olfier comprebenave
income (FYDCH), Moveinents in the caying amount are lajen Ihrougtt GL ewcont for Ihe recogeibon of jmpainient gaes o lognas, Intirest
revenue id foreign exchange gains and losses which are recagnized in Sitemont ol Preofit and Loss Wien he financal sssat 1b gemecogniged, the

cumulalive gain o loss previously recognized i OCI is reclassified feorn aquily 10 Stalement of Profil and Loss and recognized in olher gains/
{losses). :nierest incorne from hese iaiiuial assets is included in other income using the effeclive interest rale rnethnd,,

lipvestimunts in ansocisles
Investments In associates ale carried at cost/deemed cosl appiied on transifion 1o Ind AS. less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indicatior of impaitment exists, the camying amount of investment is assessed and ar, impalrment provision is recognised, if required immediaiely to
its racoverable amounl. On disposal of such investmenls. difference belween the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount is recognised in lhe
stalement of profit and loss

Derecognltion of financial assets

A financial assel Is derecognised onty when

a) the righits to rocuive cash flaws (rom Lhe fianainl assel is transferrad or

b) retains tha caiiiactunl rights o receive Ihe cash Gows of the financial assel, bul assumes a cenlraclual obligalion to pay the cash flows to one ol
mord récipients

\Witere 1he financial assel is transferred then in Ihal casa flinancial assel is derecognized only if aubstantially all isks and rewards ot owneiship of the
financial assel is transfered. Where the entily has nol lransferred substantially all risks and rawards of ownership of the financial assel, the financial
assel is not derecognized

FInancial liabilitles

Initial recognition and measurement

Al Initial recognilion, Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.
Al financial liabilifies are recognized inilially at fair value and. in the case of borrowings and payables, net of direclly aliribulable transaclion costs

Subsequenl measurement
The measurement of finandial iabilitles depends on their classification, as described below:

F canil bsbsilitigs b wnlue Wtognh piol! o loes

Financia; liabillties al falr vélue thraugh profit or Juss Include linancial lisbilitles held for irading and financial liabilllies designaled upon Inilial
recognition a5 gl fair value through profil ar loss. Separated embadded derivalives are also riagsified as held fur frading unless they are designaled
as effective hedglng Insluments. Guirls of losses on Hablliies 1t for trading aro recognized in the Slalement of Prolit and Loss.

Lonns aad bottoxangs.

Ater inflial recagnitian, interest-bearing leany ond barrowings are subsetuonily measured al amortized casl using tho EIR mathod. Gaing anil josses
are ecopnized () Slalement of Péofit and Lous when the liatilities:are dorecognizud < will a2 through the EIR amoettization pracess. Amagized cosl
Iy eqlewlaléd by laking [nto accounl any discaunt or pramium on acquisiion and foes or costi hal die an inlegral pirt of the EIR. The EiR
amartization is included as firantz cosls in the Slatement of Profit and Loss

Diorpgogrition

A Mirancial Yabilily is derecegnised when (he obiigation undar the flabilily is discharged or ¢ sid or expires, Wihen an existing financial labilily is
ceplacod by anather om e samn lendor on substaniially dilteren terms, of the terme of an existing liabilily arz substantially madified, such an
exelmnne or modiication s treated B85 i duucognilion of the afipina Wabiilty and e recogaition of a new fiabilily. The difference in the respective
O Srounts s roconnised i e Ststenient of Protil il Loss as inonce cosls

Offsetting financial instrumentis

Financial assets and liabitlies are offsel and lhe ret amounl is reported in (he balance sheel where lhere is a legally enforceatle right lo offset the
yecopizind amounts and lhere is an intention to setiio on a el basis or reslize the assel and sellle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceabile right must not be ‘contingent on future evanls and musl be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the evenl of defaull,
insolvency or bankrupicy of the Company or the courterparty

Borrowings

Borrowdngs are inlally recogtized 2t fale value, nel of ansustion cost incuried. Rutreaings are subseguontly mensured ol apoized cost Any
ditfaente butwean the proceads (net of lransaclion costsi and the redamption amount is recognized jn pialil of ovr e pariod of it
biemowings using (he elfective interest melhod. Fees paid o the-establishmont al loom tacilities &) agnizet an frnsodtian eosly of Hie loan lo
tho axtent that it is prabable that some or all of lha lacilly will be deavn down In his case, |he fee s deferred until the draw. doswa accurs To the
extehl thers s no evidonce thalil s probabie thal some or all the facility will be drawn down, (he lee is capilalized as a prapaymenl for Hquidity
services and amortized over the petiog of the lacilily lo which it relales

Borrawings are removed from [he alance sheel when the obligation specified itk the conliact iv dischimged, caneafied or expired, Thie differerce
between the ciirying amouni of a fitiansial liabllity thal has been extinguialiod o iransh 1d W anothr party angd e consideralion paid, including
any nan-cash assets lransfarred or liabiilies assumed, is recognized in statetmunl of grofl and foss as olher gana(insges)
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wof i

Hizd as current Fabiliies unless the o
1 or belore

petoad, W ach of am loan atasngemer:
peiiod with the effecl thal ihe s payabic on the enlily does nol
lender agreed, alter ke repording pennd and befoie lhe approval of inancial staiements tor issue, nal io demas
breach

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs thal are directly allributable to Ihe as ion, wonafrucli
during lhe period of ime Lhat is requiled to complele and prepare (he asset for its intemded use ne
take a substantial period of lime lo get ready for their intended use or sale

ion or production of @ qualifying Bssel a'e canltaized
sale Qualifying assels are assels (hat npcessai

Invesiment incorme eained on the lemporary inveslmenl of specilic borrowings pending their expend:lure on qualifying assels is deducled froun the
borrowirg cosl elfigible for capitalization

Olher borrowings costs are expensed ii the period in which they aie incurred

Loases

Titl March 31, 2019:

As a lessee

l.eases of property, planl and equipment where Ihe Company, as lessee, has subslanlially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classitied as
finance leases Finance leases are capitalised at Ine lease's inceplion al the fair value of lhe leased property of, if jower, the present value of the
minimum lease paymenis The corresponding renlal obligations. net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other inancial liabiities as
appropdate Each [#ass payment is allozated between the lishility and finance cost. The finance cost is charged Lo the profil or loss over lhe lease
period so as {o produci a constanl perindic rate of interest on Ihe remaining balance of the liability for esch peljod

Leases in which a significani portion of the risks and rewsrds of ewnership are not transfered 0 the Campany ay lossee are classified as opaaling
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives reteived from the tesgor) are chiarged to piofit or loss on a slraight-line basis
over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's
expecled inflalionary cost increases

As a lessor

\.ease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessol is recagnised In lncome on a slraight-line basis over Ihe lease lerm unless he
recelpls are glructured lo increase in line wilh exprectesdt general [nflation {e compenhaate for lhe expected inlalionary cost increases. The respective
leased assels are included in the balance sheet based on heir nature.

Assels given under finance leases are recognised as receivables al an amount equal to the nel investment in the lease and the finance income is
based on a constant rate of return on: he outstanding nel invesiment.

Effeclive from April 1, 2018:
As o lessoe;
From 1 April 2019, lenses are recognised as o righl-ol-use assel and 8 comespanding liabilily al the date at which lhe leased asset is available for
uge by tho company. Assels and liabililles arising from a lease are inilially measuted on 8 present valus basis. Lesse llabllilies include the nel
prasent value of the following |lease payments:

« fixed payments (including in-subst fised f ts), less any laase Incantives recelvable

« variatile (zase payment that are based on ary index of a role. Initially meastrad using the Index or vate as al the commencement date

+ amourls expected 1 be payable by the compan uridef residual value guarantees

« Ihe exercise price of a purchase oplion if the company is reasanably cenaln o exercise thal option, and

« payments of penalfies for ierminaling the lease, if Ihe Jease term reflects Iha carmipany exercising thil aption.

Lease payments {0 be made under reasonably certain extension options are aiso included in the measurement of the liability The lease payments
are discounled using the interest rate implicit in {he lease, If (hat rate cannol be readily delermined, which is generally the case for leases in the
company, lhe lessee's Incremental borrowing rale is used, being Ihe rale that the individual lessee would have to pay lo borrow the necessary t¢
oblain an asset of similar value ta the right-of-use assel in a similar economic envirorment with similar terms, security and condillons.

Luase paymants sre allocated between principal and finance cosl. The finance cost is charged W profit of loss over thi lbase period 5o 85 lo
prnduze a constant periedic rate of interest on the remaining balice of Ihe liabifity for eagh pednd. Righl.of-use assels are genorally depreciated
aver the shorter of he assel's useful life and the lease torm on a siralghl-fins basis Paymunts associaled wilh shotk-tem leasen and nll leases of
low-value assels are recognised on a straighi-line basis as an expense In profil of loss Shortlerm leases are leases with a lease temm of 12 months
or less

As a lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where (he company is a lessor is recognised in income orl a slraight-ine basis over the lease lerm inltial direct
costs incurrec in obtairing an operaling lease are added 1o the carrying arnount of the underly:ng asset and recognised as expense over the lease
{erm on (he basis of lease income The respeclive leased assels are inciuded in the balance sheet based on their nature. The company did nol need
lo make any adiustments lo the accounling for assets held as lessor as & resull of adopling he new leasing standard.
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Impairment

Financlal assels
I accordance wilh nd AS
impairmaril loss on finas

xpectod credit loss {CCL) rmodcl for measurement ang recageiion of
ne FYOCl

Q. Fnancial isslicments, e Company 80§
assels ! ro meastred at amnortized casl

2! 7

For recognilion ol imipairment Joss an financial assels and risk exposwe, lhe Company determives lhal whethier here has veen & significant
intiease n e clodit dgk sice al recofmllon I cradii risk hos not increated sighificonily, 12manth ECL is used 1o piowigs far impauyent foss
Mewiaver, i ereddit sk fins i Gl s used [T in subisequent yeats, coedit qually of the nstiiment mproves sl fhal
\hero i fo tlenger 3 sigiificant ingrease in credll risk siiee initial ecoanition, then he atlity revens b repognizing impairmant logs alipwancs besed
on 1Z month ECL

Life time ECLs are the expecied credi! losscs resulting from all possible default evenls over the expecled life of a financial instrument The 12 manth
£Cl is a portion of lhe lifetime ECL which results from default evenls that are possible within 12 months afler the yea: end

ECGL is the ddfference between all contractual cash flows thal are due lo the Company in accordance wilh the cortract and all the cash fiows that the
enlity expecls lo recaive (i & all shorifalls), giscounted al the origial EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an enlily is required to conrsider all
cunliaclual terms of the fnancial inslrumaent (including prapayment, exension ele.) over the expected lie of Ihe financial instrument Howevar, in
rare cases when lhe expecled life of the financial insttumen canrot be estimaled reliably, then lhe enlity is 1equired to use the rensaining saniraciual
lerm of lhe financial instrumenl

In general, it is presured that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recagndion if the payment is more lhan 60 days past due

ECL impalemanl loss allowance (cr revarsal) recognized duting the year 13 gnized as incom wse ity dhe statament of profit @nd loss In
balance £hisel ECL for financial assels measured at amartizad cost is p ted as nn e as an Intagsal pad of the measdrement of
lhose assels in Ihe balance sheel. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount Until the assel meets writa ofl enterly, the Company does not
reduce impairmenl allowance from Ihe gross cairying amount

Non-financial assels

Properly. plant and equipment and intaigible assels are evallrated for recoverublily whenever there is any Indicalion that their carrying amaunls
may nol be recoyeratile. If any such indication exists, the recovarable- amount [l e higher ol the fair valuz loss cost 1o sell and the value-ln-use) is
determined on an individua! assel basis unless the assel does nol generale cash flaws thal are fargaly independent of these from olfier assals. in
such cases, the recoverable amount is delermined for the cash generaling unit (CGU) lo which the assel belongs

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU} is eslimated to be less than its carrying amaunt, Ihe carrying amount of the asset {or CGUJ) is
reduced 10 ils recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the stalement of profit or loss, The Company review/assess al each
reporting date if (here is any indication Ihat an assel may be Impaired

A GGL to which goodwill has been sllocated s tested for impalment anpually, ur mofe fraquently when thare is an indication thal the unit may be
impitod. i the 1 bie amount of the CGU is less Ihan its camylng nl, Ihe Impol 1t logs in firg! to reduee thiy camying amoant
of any geodwill allocated to the Unit and then to the olher nssats of i unit pro mla hased on the camying amount of ouch sesal in tha unil. Any
impal | loss fer goadwill is gnised direetiy in profil or loss. A impaiimont loss recogaised Tor goodwill 1 nol roversod in adbregquent pedods

Foreign currency transactions

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupee. Transaclions in foreign currencies are recorded on inilial recogrilion al the
exchange rale prevailing on the date of lhe {ransaclion

Monetary ilems (i.e receivables, payable, Joans elc) denominaled in foreign cumrency are reported using lthe closing exchange rale on each
jeporting date

The exchange difference arising on Ihe selllement of mohatary ltems or on reporting these ilems at rates different from rates at which lhese were
inllially recordediraporied in previous financial stalements are recognized as income/ expense in the period in which ihey arise

Employee benefits
Long term employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans

The fampany's contiibution to provident luhd, superannualion fund and employee slale [nsurance scheme ale considered as defined contribulion
plans and #re charged as an expense basad on \he amaunt of coniribution required lo be made and when services are rendered by lhe employesas;

Defined benefit plans

The liabllity rocoanized in respect of grittilly 15 e present vole of distired Benehit abligation ol thie ond ol the eporting potod less Mo fai vale of
plan assetn, white npplicable. The Campany makes Goatriliition to the LIC lor Emplayoos Gratuity Selwme in inspedt of employans of ano of the
divisian, The defined bonetll obligation Is calcuinted snoually by octuary deng the Projociad Uni Grodit Mothad  Romessuigmont compiising
actuarial galng and losses and relurn on plan assety (excuding sel inleredt) am weeonized in e otber compralionaive meome foo e potod in
which they occur and is nol reclassified lo profit or loss.

Gompensaled absenes which are nol exprcted lo gecur within lweive monihg alter e end of tha panod in which the employee rendars the relaled
service are recognised as a liabilily al the present value of the defined bensfl ahifigation detarmined uking tha Projecied Unil Cost Maihed as at lhe
balance sheel date less ihe fair value of the plan assels out of which the sbligations are axpected 1o be seftlud

Short term employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term gmployee benefits expealed lo be paid in exchange for the services rendared by employees are recognised
dufinig (e year when the amployees render e servise. These benefils include porfarmance incentive arid compensated absences which are
expacted 1o ocour Within twalve months #ller ihe end of Ihe paeriod in which the employee renders the relaled service
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The Inceme-tax liatily is provite
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s and (heir canying amounts in the lina:
is no fonger probable that the related 2

Income tax und deferrad lax are measured on the basis of (he fax rales anc tax (aws enacled or substanlively enacied at the end of e repaiting
perod and are recoginized in profit o7 foss, excepl when shiey relule o ilems (hat dre recognized in alher comprehensive income oi gireclly in equily,
i which case, the income tax and deferred lax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or direcily in equity, iespectively

Neferred lax assets and liabidilies and advance againsl current tax are classified as non-current assels and liabilities Currenl tax assels and
liabiliies and Deferred tax assels and lisbilisies atc offsel when fhete is a legaily enforceable ght 1o ofisel currenl lax assels and liabililies and when
the deferred lax balances relale lo lhe same laxation aulhonly

Deferred lax assets are recognised for all deductible lemporary diffecences and unused lax losses oniy if it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be avaitable lo vlitize those lemparary differences and losses Management periodically evaiuales positens taken in lax ieturns with respect to
siluaticns in which applicable lax regulation is subject lo interprelation It eslablishes provisions where approplale on the basis of amounts expected
lo be paid 1o (he tax aulliviiiies

tamimum Allernate Tax (MAT] pald Iny accordanee with e tax laws. which gives fulure economic benefits in the form of acdjustment lo future income
\ax liobility, i conaldered as an asselif theare (s eanvincing evidunce {hiul e Company vill pay normal income tax over and above MAT ‘Agcard:ngly,
MAT |s tecognised as an arsal in the Balance Sheet when it ls probsbll that fuiure economic berefit associated with it will flow to the Company.,

217 Provislons and contingent liabilities
Provisions for legal claims. volume discounts and relums are recognised when lhe company has a present legal or consliuctive obligation as a
fesiill of past evenls, it is prabahle ikal an outflow of resources will be raquitzd lo seltie the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated
Provisions ate nol recognised for future operaling losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's besl eslimale of the expenditure required lo sellle the present abligation at lhe end
aof the reporling period.
Provision for product warranlies is recorded when products are sold Producl warranly cosls are accrued based on past experience, adjusled for
current rends
Conlingen! listilites are disclosed when these is a possible onligation ari<ing from past evenls, the exsterice of which will be cenfirmad only by the
oreurrenGa of NON neeurrente of ang of Tire uncertain fllure events nol whnlly within thie control of the Company or & presant obligalion hat anses
from past evenls where Il |5 either rot probable hat an outfiow ef resoureas will be reduited ta seltie or a reliable estimate of e amount cannot be
made.

218 Government Grant
Grants from the govemment are recognised at lheir fair value where there is a reasonable sssurance thal the grant will be received and lhe

Company will comply with all attached condilions. Granis are presenled in Profi and loss by deducting the related expense.

2,19 Earnings per share:
Basic eatnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (foss) afler tax by the: weighled average number of equily shares oulslanding during lhe
year Diluled earnings per share Is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after lax as adjusted for dividend, interest and olher charges {o expense or
income relafing o the dilulive polential equity shares, by the weighled average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per
share and lhe weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversian of all dilutive polenlial equity shares.

2,20 Operating Cycle:
Pased on ihe nalure of products / activities of the Company and the normal time belween acquisition of assels and their reallsalion in cash or cash

221 Rounding off amounts:
All amounlts disclosed in financial statements and notes have been rounded off 10 lhe nearest lakhs as per requiremenl of Schedule Il of the Act,
unless olherwise slated

2.22 Estimates and assumpllons:
The prepartion of I st ta requires the use of acouunling estimates which, by definillon, will seltorm equal Ihe aglunl results,
Managemenl also needs 16 exertise judgement In applying the Company's sccounhing policies
This riste provides an overvicw of the areay thal involved 8 higher degree of judgerment of complexily, and of lema which are more likely to be
malerially adjusied due lo estimates and assumptions turning out to be aifferont {han these orighnlly assessad Datailed Infatrialion about each of
lhese estimates and judgements is included in refevant notes together wiih informatian about te basls of caloylation for each affeclad fine ilem in
the financial slalements
The area involving ciitical eslimales or judgements is:
1 Estimated goodwill impairment
2 Estimalion of defined benefit obligalion
3 Eslimatior: of provision for warranty claims
4 Impalrmaent of lrade recelvables
Esiimates and judgemants are conlinually evaliated Thiey are based on hislorical experience and other faclors, incliding expeclalions of fulure
evenis thal may have o financlai Inpact on the Comgiany and thalare believed lo be reasonabie upder the circumslances

{a) Taxes
Neferred tax assels are recognized for unused tax losses lo he exlent Ihat it is probable thal taxable profit will be available againsl which the losses
can be ulilised Significant management judgment is required to determine the amoun! of deferred tax assets |hat can be recognized, based upon
Ihe likely liming and the leve! of fulure taxable profits logether wilk fulure tax planning siralegies

The Company ngillier have any lixable lemporary difference nor any {ax planring opportunities available thal could partly suppar! Ihe recognilien of

Ihese losses as deférred lax assets. On this hasis. the Company has delermined lhal il gannot recognize defurred lax @ssets on the tax losses
carried forward excepl for the unabsorbed depreciation Refer Nale 27

(by  Defined benefit plans (graluily benefils anc leave encashment)
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The cost of e defined bensfit plans such as grawity and leave sncashinenl are delermined using actuarial valialions An scluaria! veluailop
Involves making various assumplions that may differ from actual developmenls In the fulure, These include the determination of lhe discounl rate,
future salery increases and morialily rates. Due Io the complexilies involved in the valualion and iis lang lerm nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensilive to changas in lhese assumplions, All essumptions are reviewed at each year end.

illable on goversumiini
tilority, promolion and

The principal a4sumlitng are the discount and salary growlh rate. The dincount rats la based upon lhe markel yields @
bonds at Ihe secouinling date with a Tarm thal matches Uit of lablilies. Salary incrersn rate takas into accorrt of inflation,
olher relevant factors an long term basis. For delails rafer Note 32
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Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 3D: Leases

(i) Amounts recognised in balance sheet

As at As at
March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019"
Fin lakhs Zin lakhs
Right of use assets
Land and buildings 1,787.51 1,937.94
Vehicles 395.84 365.07
Total 2,183.35 2,303.01
As at As at
March 31, 2020 April 01, 2019*
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Lease Liabilities
Current 400.08 330.82
Non Current 349.83 535.09
Total 749.91 865.91

* In the previous year, the company only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases that were
classified as finance leases under IND AS 17, Leases. The assets were presented in praperty, plant and equipment
and the liabilities as part of borrowings and other financial liabilities. No material adjustments were noted on adoption

of Ind AS 116 on April 01, 2018.

1) Additions to the ROU assets during the current financial year were Rs. 411.97 lakhs
2) Total Cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2020 was Rs. 535.50 Lakhs
3) The lease rentals are fixed as per the terms of agreement and there are no variable lease payments

(i) Amounts recognised in Statement of Proft and Loss

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Depreciation Charge of right-of-use assets
Land and buildings 352.63 .
Vehicles 144,12 -
486.75 -
interest Expenses 51.69 -
Total 588.74




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 4: Investment

As at
March 31, 2020
T in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs

Investment in equity shares (At cost)
Unquoted (fully paid up)

Investment in associates
Stopak India Privaie Limited
170,512 {As at March 31, 2019: 170,512) shares of 1 each fully paid up.

Other investments
Patancheru Enviro-Tech Limited
16,470 (As at March 31, 2019: 16,470) shares of 210 each fully paid up.

3,105.10

1.65

3,10510

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments

3,106.75

3.106.75




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 5: Other financial assets

Naon-Current

Particulars As at “As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Zin lakhs

Unsecured, considered good

(a) Security deposits 231,76 325.69

(b) Earnest money deposits 19.73

{¢) Interest accrued on deposits 9.62 -

(d) Retention money with customers 330.83 48.86

(e) Finance lease receivables 205.44 273.51

(f) Balances held as margin money for guarantees 587.51 684.10
issued by banks (Refer note (i) below)

Total 1,474.88 1,332.16

Notes:

(i) The balances held as margin money for guarantees issued by bank includes margin money of ¥ 375 lakhs (March 31, 2019
375 lakhs) against cash credit limit from bank and ¥ 359.56 lakhs (March 31, 2018 309.10 lakhs) subject to ficst charge to
secure the Company's Letter of Credit and for guarantees issued by bank to customers.

Current
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Zin lakhs T in lakhs
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Securily deposits 172.64 88.09
{b) Earnest money deposits 12.20 10.98
(c) Retention money with customers 165.08 657.14
(d) Finance lease receivables 165.07 122.62
(&) Interest accrued on deposits 83.42 2413
{f) Balances held as margin money for guarantees 147.05 -
issued by banks (Refer note (i) above)

Total 746.46 902.96
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Signede India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 6: Other assets

Non Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
(a) Capital advances 74.34 110.25
(b} Prepaid expenses 61.50 36.43
(c) Leasehold land prepayment # : 1,345.35
(d) Balances with Government authorities™ 3,188.77 1,942.90
Total 3.324.61 3,434.93

* Includes amounts paid under protest ¥ 159.61 lakhs (March 31, 2019: ¥ 143.84 lakhs) towards sales tax
disputes and % 2,929.57 lakhs (March 31, 2019: 1,693.70 lakhs) towards deposits for income tax related case
and  44.89 lakhs towards deposits with Customs authorities.

Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs 7 in lakhs
(a) Leasehold land prepayment # " 15.35
(b) Advances to employees 123.62 117.08
{(c) Prepaid expenses 173.70 196.64
(d) Balances with Gevernment authorities 988.30 1,073.12
(e) Export benefits receivable 484.50 366.09
(f) Advance to suppliers
Unsecured, considered good 360.78 447.49
Doubtful 10.69 11.94
less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances (10.69) (11.94)
Total 2,130.90 2,215.77

# Refer note 3D for reclassification to Rou asset on adoption of ind AS 116




Signode india Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 7: inventories

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
% in lakhs T in lakhs

(a) Raw materials 4,217.27 5,036.34
{b) Work-in-progress 3,182.59 2,301.31
(c) Finished goods 2,773.04 3,352.42
(d) Stock-in-trade 4,060.70 3,685.66
(e) Goods-in-transit 381.22 278.03
(f) Stores and spares 130.57 187.27
Total 14.745.39 14,841.03




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 8: Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Zin lakhs T in lakhs
Trade receivables 26,664.08 27,164.61
Receivables from related parties 4.475.87 2,566.41
31,139.95 29,731.02
Less: Loss allowance 523.76 1.422.01
Total 30,616.19 28,309.01
Break up of security details
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 30,616.19 28,309.01
Trade receivables - credit impaired 523.76 1,422.01
Total 31,139.95 29,731.02
Loss allowance 523.76 1,422.01
Total 30,616.19 28,309.01
Notes:

1) The Company estimates the allowance for uncollectible accounts by applying % reserve based on aging of the
debts due and specifically taken for debts where conditions are present for uncollectibility. In addition, the allowance
for uncollectible accounts includes reserves for customer credits and cash discounts, which are also estimated based

on past experience.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

¥ in lakhs T in lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,422.01 809.83
Add: Provision for expected credit loss recognised during the year - 61218
Less: Provision reversed during the year (132.84) -
Less: Bad debt expense charged off during the year (765.61) -
Balance at the end of the year 523.76 1.422.01

Iyderab



Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 9: Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
% in lakhs Z in lakhs
Balances with banks
- In current accounts - 2,262.09
- In EEFC accounts 794.43 877.06
- Deposits with maturity of less than three months 7,835.00 -
Total 8,629.43 3,139.15
Note 10: Contract assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Unsecured, considered good
Contract assets 7,500.94 5,426.14
Total 7,500.94 542614




Signode India Limited
Males lorming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 14: Equity Share Capita!

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Number of Number of
shares ¥ in lakhs shares 2 in lakhs

(a) Authorised share capital

Equily shares of 10 each 15,60,00,000 15,000 OC 15,00 00,000 15,000 00
{b} Issued

Equily shares of ¥ 10 each 7.41,52.940 741529 8.25,36.138 8,253 61
{c} Subscrlbed and fully paid up*

Equity shares of 2 10 each 7.41,52.940 741528 8,25,36,126 8,253 64
Total 7416.20 8,253.61

* Refer notes (i) to {iv) beiow

i. Reconclliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the reporting year:

a) Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2018
No. of shares ZTinlakhs No. of shares Zin lakhs

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Al lhe beginning of the year 8,25,36,126 8,253 61 10,70,86,046 10,708 60
Less: Broughl back during the year 83,83,186 38 32 2,45,49 920 2,454 98
At the end of the year 7,41,52,94¢ 7,415.29 8,25,36,126 8,253.61

b} Aggregate number and class of shares bought back for the period of last 5 years immediately preceding Ihe date of which balance sheet.
(In numbers)

Class of shares FY 19-20 FY 18-18 Fy17-18 FY 16-17 FY 1516
Equily shares boughl back of T 10 each 3,605,105 2.45,49.920 - 244 06,000
ii. Detail of shares held by Holding Company and shareholders holding As at As at
more than 5% equity shares with voting rights are as under: No of shares  Percentage No of shares Percentage
Equity shares of T 10 each wilh voling rights

Strapex Holdings Limiled , UK 7,41.52,934 99.99% 8,25,36,120 99 96%

il Rights, preferences and (esirictions attached 10 shares:

Eaulty Shares The Company his only one doss of oquily Shires hivieg pa volne of €10 per share, Gach ghareholdar is aililled (0 o vole per shace held. I reapect
of equity shares, voling fght shall be in same fioportion ss tho eapinl poid upon sueh cqinty share. I8 e event of digdeni propasesd by the Board of Directors, whith
i subjes! 10 e approval of (he shareholdirs th the Annual Ganeral Mesting, it sholl e i he same proportion s I coapdtanl il updsny slch equity share. Jo S event
of tetation, the holders of equily shares will be entillied Lo r2coive ramaining asseln of fho vampany, dfler distitution ol an priferential amounts The distabugion vail
e AN progrontion to the numbser of equily shages fieid by Ui stelioldors The shnes baught back in the eatlier yaars were cancutied [mmediatiely

iv. No class of shares have been issued as bonus sliares or for consideralion ather than cash by the Company during lhe penad of five years immedialely preceding
ihe current year end

Cn I n\l'l(:'.'f_\-}‘ll‘\‘
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Signode India Limlted
Notes forming part of the standalone financial stataments

Note 12: Other Equlty

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

. B % In lakhs T in lakhs -
Other equity
Securities pramium 36,767 64 47,380.81
Capilal redemplion reserve 7,503.31 6,564.96
Retained earnings 49,062,39 36,263.69
Total a 93,333.24 90,309.48
(a) Securities premium account
Qpening baiance 47,380.81 73,297.27
Less: Utilised during the year on account of buyback of equity shares (9,811.80) (24,545.01)
Less: Expenses on buyback of equlty shares (801.48) (1,371.45)

Closing balance 36.767.64 47,380.81
(b) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening balance 6,664.89 4,210.00
Add: On accounl of buyback of shares 838.32 2,454.89

Closing balance 7,503.21 6,664.99
(c) Retained eamings
Opening balance 368,263.89 24 458.84
Add: Changae In accounling policy - Ind AS 115 409.72
Add: Profit for he ysar 13,837.02 13,760.12
Less: Transferred o Capltal Redemplion Reserve on account of buyback of shares (838.32) (2,454.99)

Closing balance 49,062.39 36,263.69

Tolst 03,303.34 80,308 40




Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial staternents

Note 13: Barrowings

aj Non-Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Secured — at amortised cost
{.ong-ferm maturities of finance lease obligations # 168.10
_ Total = 189.10
b) Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs T in lakhs

Unsecured
Export packing credit loans 2,500.00 5.000.00
Bank Overdrafl 335.60

Total 2,836.60 5,000.00
{{) Terms of borrowings:

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars Terms of repayment Interest rate Z in lakhs ¥ In lakhs
Sundaram Finance Limited/ Monthly instalments over a o o
Kotak Mahindra # period of 4 years. S AESSIl
. 5.15% to 5.55 P.A,

HDFC Bank Limited Single repayment atthe end e o monthly 2,500.00 5,000.00

of 6 months

basis

# Refer note-17 for current maturities of finance lease obligation. Alsa refer note 3D for reclassification to lease liability on
adoption of Ind AS 116.

{ii) Net debt reconcillation
This section sets out an analysis of nel debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Gash and cash equivalenis B.G29.43 313918
Gufrent borrowings including interest accrued (2,846 53) (5,018.63)
Nan-current borrowings - (2B8.67)
Net debt 5,782.90 (2,168.15)
Cash and cash Current borrowlngs Non-current Total
equivalents including interest borrowings
accrued

Net debt as at March 31, 2018 19,106.93 - (238,33) 18.,666.60
Cash flows {15,967.77) (5,000.00) {48.60) (21,016.37)
Interest expense (18.63) (65.96) {74.59)
Interest paid . - 54.22 54.22
Net debt as at March 31, 2019 3,138.16 (5,018.63) (288.67) (2,168.14)
Cash flows 5,490.28 2.164.40 7.654.68
Intarest expense (10.93) (10 93)
interest paid 18 63 18B.63
Reclassified to Lease Liabilitics 288 67 288 67

{2,646.53) 5,782.92

Net debt as at March 31, 2020 8,629.45
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Signode india Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 14; Provisions

Non-Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs T in lakhs
(a) Provision for employee benefits:

(i) Gratuity (Refer note 32) 101.26 -

{ii) Compensated absences (Refer note 32) 97 01 0.38
{b) Provisicn for warranty* 135.51 98.74
(c) Others - 44.60
Total 333.78 143.72
Current

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
T in lakhs Z in lakhs
{a) Provision for employee benefits:

(i) Compensated absences (Refer note 32) 13.49 7.29
(b) Provision for warranty* 125.41 92.59
{c) Others 44.60 -
Total 183.50 99.88
Notes:

*Provision for warranty claims represents the best estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be
required under Companies obligation for warranties under sale of power strapping machines and standard
equipments. As per Company policy, lhe estimate of future warranty costs is based on past experience, usually
based on an analysis of past warranty costs from the date of original preduct sale,

Movement in provisions:

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

a, Provision for warranty
Opening balance ]
Additional provisions recognised
Amounts used during the year
Closing balance

Classified as:

Short term

Long term

b. Provision for Others
Opening balance

Amounts used during the year
Closing balance

Classified as:

Short term

Long term

0636¢ /630005

191.33 141.78
137 70 87.48
(68.11) (37.93)
260,92 191,33
126.41 92.59
135.51 98.74
4460 45.48
3 (0.88)
44.60 44,60
44.60 .
. 44.60



Signade Indla Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financlal statements

Note 15: Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
¥ in lakhs Z in lakhs

Deferred tax Asset/{Liability)
Disfirred lax kability
On depreciation {13,739.05) (12 257 68)

{13,739.05) (12,257.68)
Delerned lax asaels
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 186.76 501.08
Others 127.96 69.53

31471 570.61

MAT Credit entitlement 4,068,99 §,754,51
Deferred tax liability (not) {9,355.35) (5,932.57)




Signode india Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financiai statements

Note 16: Trade payables

Particulars ~ Asat As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
T in lakhs ¥ in lakhs

Trade payables - micro and small enterprises 2,148.48 648.49
Trade payables - others 24,003.63 18,792.31
Trade payables to related parties 1,353.61 788.34

Total 27,505.72 20,229.15
Note:

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006 ("MSMED Act")
As at
March 31, 2020
Z in lakhs

As at
March 31, 2019
¥ In lakhs

a) Principal amount due 10 suppliers registered under the MEMED Act and 1.056.65
remaining unpaid as at year end T

b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 31.65
unpaid as at year end )

¢) Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year

d) Inlerest paid other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

e) Interest paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act, 1o suppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

f} Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 16.88
for payments already made * ’

g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years ™ 14.77

* These amounts have been already included in point (b) above.

455,88

31.65

23.66

7.99



Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 17: Other financial liabilities

Current
Particulars ~ Asat As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Tin lakhs
(a) Current maturities of finance lease obligations” 99.57
(b) Capital creditors 73.03 201.87
(c) Employee benefits payables 824.29 916.22
(d) Interest accrued on borrowings 10.83 18.63
(e) Others 1.31 4.46
Total 909.56 1.240.75
*Refer note 3D for reclassification to lease liability on adoption of Ind AS 116.
Note 18: Contract liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs T in lakhs
Contract liabilities - Income received in advance 86.82 74.43
Contract liabilities - Advances from customers 952.55 637.89
Total 1,039.37 712.32
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liabllity balance at the beginning of
the period
Revenue from operations 712.32 546.89
Total 712.32 546.89




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 19: Current tax asset/liabifities {net)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Opening balance (368.57) 1,275.25
Add: Current tax payable for the year 5,649.76 5,588.36
Add: Tax expense utilised against MAT credit (1,639.06) (287.18)
Less: Taxes paid (4,696.93) (6,945.00)

Clasing balance (1,054.80) (368.57)




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Nate 20: Other liabilities

Current
Particuiars - As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs T in lakhs
(a) Statutory dues payable 561.72 1,009.09
(b) Others 2.50 2.50
Total 564.22 1,011.59
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Signode india Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 21: Revenue from operations®

Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs Zin lakhs

Revenue from contract with customers:
(a) Sale of products”

1,15,020.83 1,18,246.78

(b) Sale of services 16,735.96 15,294.39
(c)  Other operating revenue (refer note A below) 1,222.57 1,290.36
Total 1,32.978.36 1,34,831.53

* Includes sale of fraded products ¥ 38,083.09 lakhs (March 31, 2019: ¥ 40,179.34 lakhs)

Note A:
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
€ in lakhs % in lakhs
1 Scrap sales 399.61 588.92
2 Duty drawback and other export incentives 711.65 588.95
3 Royalty income 111.30 112.49

Total 1,222.66 1,290.36




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 22: Other income

Particulars Forthe year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
% in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
{a) Interest income
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as FVTPL
(i) Bank deposits 301.89 629.05
(i) Finance lease assets 38.87 7.49
(i) Security deposits and retention money 28.59 22.58
369.35 659.12
(b) Other non-operating income
(i) Foreign exchange differences (net) 611.65 380.66
(i) Liabilities no longer required written back 374 1.74
(iiiy Provision for doubtful debts written back 132.64
(iv) Cash disccunt received 12.78 1.46
(v) Miscellaneous income 30.71 38.55
(vi) Dividend income 290.71 -
(vii) Profit on sale of property. plant and equipment (net) 11.22 -
1,083.45 422.41
Total 1,462.80 1,081.53




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 23.a Cost of materials consumed

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
T in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Raw materials at the beginning of the year 5,036 34 1.825.21
Add: Purchases 50,184.91 52,514.31
Less: Raw materials at the end of the year 4217.27 5,036.34
Cost of material consumed 51,003.98 48,303.18

Note 23.b Purchase of traded goods

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Films 3,635.64 3,457.52
Others 24,545 81 27,271.88
Total 28,181.45 30,729.40

Note 23.c Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Inventories at the end of the year.
Finished goods 2,773.04 3,352.42
Work-in-progress 3,182.59 2,301.31
Stock-in-trade (including goods in transit) 4,441.92 3,063.69
10,397.55 9,617.42
Inventories at the beatnning of the year
Finished goods 3,352.42 3,391.46
Work-in-progress 2,301.31 3,855.96
Stack-in-trade (including goods in transit) 3,963.69 3,039.49
9,617.42 10,286.91
Net {increase) / decrease (780.13) 669.49
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Signode india Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 24: Employee benefits expense

Particulars Forthe yearended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Z in lakhs Zin lakhs
Salaries, wages and bonus 20,201.67 18,785.54
Contribution to provident and other funds 644.45 586.59
Gratuity (refer note 32) 154.89 151.03
Staff welfare expenses 623.27 652.80
Total 21,624.28 20,175.96




Signaode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 25: Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥ in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Interest expense on:
(i) Leased liabilities 91.99 55.96
(ii) Borrowings including bills discounted 805.32 661.10
(iii) Interest on income tax 150.11 92.23
(iv) Others 35.66 2.51
Total 1,083.08 811.80




Signode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

Note 26: Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
T in fakhs ¥ in lakhs
Consumption of stores, spares and loose tools 371.44 392.83
Power, fuel and water charges 2,278.89 2,216.28
Rent (Refer note 30) 348.84
Repairs and maintenance - buildings 61.46 85.44
Repairs and maintenance - machinery 286.86 268.55
Repairs and maintenance - others 259.21 372.94
Insurance 279.66 286.87
Rates and taxes 48.89 42.41
Advertisement and publicity 83.58 140,90
Freight and forwarding (net) 2,443.87 2,382.46
Travelling and conveyance 1,888.63 1,718.64
Donations and contributions 0.95 0.20
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer note 36) 58.72 37.29
Legal and professional 195.90 260.32
Payment to auditors (refer note below) 17.49 15.00
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 58.36
Provision for loss allowance on trade receivables 612.18
Printing and stationery 54.47 53.19
Warranty expenses 137.70 87.48
Communication 34511 327.28
Amonrtisation of lease hold land 3.65
Sales commission 125.49 183.08
Bad debts and advances written off 56.92
Bank charges 91.60 100.59
Miscellaneous expenses 400.65 424.06
Total 9.431.57 10,476.76
Note: Details of payments to auditors
As auditor:

- Statufory audil 13.00 13.00

- Tax audit 2.00 2.00

- certlflcation 1.00 .

- Reimbursement of expenses 1.49 -

17.49 15.00
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Signode India Limlted

Notas forming part of the standalone
financial statements

27. incoma tax expense

{a) Income tax expense

" For the year endad

March 34, 2020

For the year ended

March 31, 2019

€in lakhs Zin lakhs
Current tax 58649.76 5,588.36
(etered lax 1,767 .45 1,960.36
Tax related to currant yoar |A) TA17.21 7.538.72
Taxes reinted {6 oricr year (B) B5.47 1,24
Totol tax axy v (A1) 7M4B2.68 7,540.01

{b) Recongcillation of tax expense and
accounting profit:

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
2 in lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Profit before Tax 21,224.41% 21.362.79
Tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Income tax expense at income tax rate 7.416,66 7,465.01
(i) Tax effect of iterms not deductible In calculating income tax:
Interest on Incame tax 52,45 32.23
Corporate social responsibility expense 20.85 3.89
Amontisation of lease hold land 534 1.28
Interest on MSME vendors . 2.79
(i) Chapter VI-A Deduction {22.63) -
(i} Cithiers- shol/(evcong) 10.01 34.80
Income tax expense 7,482.68 7.640.01
Effactive tax rate 35.26% 35.30%
(c) Deferred tax movements
Deferred tax assots/{linbilities) in relation to E in lakhs
Depracistion Frovislon for Share aptions MAT Credit Othars Total
doubtful debts and outstanding Entitlement
advances account
As at March 31, 2018 (10,111.21) 28717 6,091.76 128.75 (3,805.54)
(Charged)/crediled to
Profil or loss (2,146.48) 213.91 (337.24) (90.88) (2,360.69)
Cther comprehensive Income . . 33.66 33.66
As at March 31, 2019 {12,257.69) 501.08 5,764.61 69.53 {5.932.57)
(Charged)/credited to :
Profit or loss (1.481.36) (314.32) (1,685.52) 217 (3.479.03)
Other comprehensive income . » 56.25 56.25
As ot March 31, 2020 {13,738.05) 186.76 4,068 98 12795 {0,355,35)




Sigrede | a Limited
Nates torming part of the standalone financial statements

29 Earning Per Share

sied average number of egully

Basic egrmings #1088 pes shaic amaunls e(s by tho wes

shares adlslanding dunng the year

sting fou interesi on [he converibie
number of equily shases thal would be

Nt Kool T st 2mounis an
wes by e vooxghfos average i

For the year ended I-’orlhé year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Profit after tax (2 in lakhs) A 13,741 73 13.822_7E
Number of shares issued and subscribed (Nos ) a8 7.41,52,94C 8,25,36.126
Weighled average number of shares (Nos ) C 7,93.75.253 946,42 948
Basic and Diluled EPS (%) AC 17.31 14,61
29, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
€ in Jakhs ¥ in lakhs
{a) Contingent liabilitles”
(iy In respecl of excise matlers 57 88 59138
(ii) In respect of service tax matlers 116.94 152.44
(iii) In respect of custom mallers 19,44 19.44
(iv) In respecl of sales tax/val malters 2,081.82 151812
(v) In respecl of Income lax matters . 128.74
(vi) In respec! of civil and iabour matlers 3.78 3.61
2,279.84 1,881.49

(bj Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining 10 be executed in capital accounl and naf provided for 510,08
(Net of advances paid amounting lc 2 74.33 lakhs (March 31,2018 T 110.2 lakhs)).

261,40

# All the above mallers are subject la legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the management the legal preceedings, when
ultimately concluded. will not have material effect on resuits of operalions or financial posilion of the Compary

{¢) Thee Gompany has evatunted the impacl of the Supremo Cout Jutgment i case of “Vivakananda Vidyamandr Ana Others Ve The Ragohal Provdem Fund
Comminsionet {11} YWest Bongat® and the related cliputar (Clroular No. C-U1{23)201 8N Ivekanandn Midya Mondier284) dated March 20,2010 iwsued by e Employoes
Provident Fusd Organisation in folnlion o noh-exclusion of cenaln ollowances ram the definttion of "bagic wages” of the relevan) cmplayeus Tor Ihe pumpesas ol

de_lnrmlmng coniribulion to provident fund under the Employees’ Provident Funds & Miscallnneous Provisions At 11052 In the sssamment of tha manogariant, e
alatesaid matier |5 nol likely to have @ significan! mpact and accordingly, no provision has been made In these finansial slatements.

30. Leases
Ag indicated in he note 2.1, the company hias adopled Ind AS 116 using modified relrospeciive approach fram April 01, 2018, bul has not resfaled comparatives for

yaar ended March 31, 2019, 2s parmilied tinder the spusific fransilion provislans in (he standard. The reclassificalions and the adjusiments ayising from the new
leasing rules are [herefore racegnised In the opening litancs vheet on 1 April 2018,

On adoplian of Ind AS 118, (he company racegnised lease liabilities in relation 10 leases which had previausly heen classilied as 'Operating leasee’ undar the principles
of Init AS 17, Leases. These liaklliies were measured al the present valie of the remalning lease paymenis, iscounted using the lessea’s incremental bomowing rate
as of 1 Apnil 2019, The welghied average lessee's increments! borowing rate applied 1o lhe lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 was 8.17%

For leases proviously dussified as finance Jeases the enlily rucogrised the camying amount of the lease asssel and lease laibility iminedialely before fransiticn as the
carrying amourt of the righl of use asset and the fease liability ot e date of inilla! applicalion. The measurement pnciples of ind AS 116 are tnly applied after that

date

(i) Measurement of lnase liabilities

Discounted value of opataling leases on inifial adoption of Ind AS 116 577 24

Add: finance lease liabilities recognised as al March 31, 2019 288 67

|.ease iiabllity recognised as al 1 Apri! 2018 865.91

Of which are:

Curent lease liabilities 33082
535 09

Nen-current tease llabilities

{it) Measurement of right-of-use assets
Righl-nf-use assets have bean recognised at amount equivalent Lo net presenl value of lease obligations over the expecled term of Ihe iease using the company's
incremental barrowing late

(i) Adjusiments recognised In the bilance sheet on 1 April 2019

The changs in accounling pelicy afizeted \he following items in the balance sheet on 1 Aprit 2018
1 property,piant and equipmen - decreasc by INR 3635 07

2 righl-of -use assels - increase by INR 2,303.01

3 delered tax asse!s(net) - Nil

4. prepayments - decrease by INR 1,360 7

5 bortawing and olher financial liabilllies - decrease by INR 288 67

6. lease lighllilies - increass by INR 865.91

The net Impact on retalnid varnings on 1 April 2019 was Nil

{iv) Lessor accounting

The company did not need to make adjustments to the accounting far assels heid as lessor under operating / finance leases as a resull of the adoption of Ind AS 116
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Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

31. Related Party Disclosures
a) Name of related parties
Crown Holdings Inc, USA
Strapex Hoidings Limited, UK
Stopak India Private Limited

Names of fellow subsidiaries have been given in (b) below :

Key management peisonnel

R V $ Ranmakrishna

Gaurav Maheshwari

Lakshmi Narayana Raju Namburi
G Ravindra Babu

Krishna Kumat

Deep Chowdhury

Vanaja Kaleru

Director

Richard Eben Morgan
Nils Alfons Michael Stenger
Patricia Marie Anne Chidiac

b) Transactions with related parties during the year

Description of relationship

Ultimate Helding company
Holding comgany

Associate Company

- Managing Director

— Whole-time Director
~ Whole-lime Director
— Whole-time Director

- Whole-time Director
- Chief Financial Officer

— Company Secretary

— Director
— Director
— Director

(i) Purchase of raw materials, components and finished goods

Posl emiployinen! benefit plan

Sigrode India Gratuity Trust
Signede India Superannuation Trust

{7 in lakhs)

Name of related party Relationship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
sipnode Industrial Group Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 702.87 724.26
signode Engineered Products Fellow Subsidiary 693.73 778,27
Signode Korea Inc Fellow Subsidiary 582.80 559.84
Signode Kabushiki Kaisha. Fellow Subsidiary 562.33 544.16
Caretex Asia Company Limited Fellow Subsidiary 448.30 6542 28
0OY M.Haloila AB Fellow Subsidiary 361.21 189.13
SPG Packaging Systems Group Gmbh Fellow Subsidiary 328.97 223.46
Sigriode Export & Distributar Service Fellow Subsidiary 284.72 209.52
Muller Load Containment Salutions Fellow Subsidiary 280.92 408.78
Signote Systom Gmbh Feliow Subsidiary 104,76 76.86
Signnde Packaginng (Qingdao) Co Ltd Feliow Subsidiary 65.15 0.57
Haloila Bulgaria Eood Fellow Subsidiary 64.67 27.49
Storfast Warehouse Automatiorn Fellow Subsidiary 50.92 169.74
M.P.S. Meta! Plastik $anayi Cember Ve Pak.Sist.Iml.Ve Fellow Subsidiary
Tic.A.S. 29.54 40.41
Jasef Kihlberp AB Fellow Subsidiary 17.84 0.34
Signode System Packaging Gmbh & Co KG Fellow Subsidiary 9.93
Loveshaw Corporation Fellow Subsidiary 0.84 21.03
Midwest Industrial Packaging Inc Fellow Subsidiary 0.61
signode Midwest Steel Feliow Subsidiary 0.45 0.03
Mezgor Heftsystome Gmbh Feliow Subsidiary 0.22
Fellow Subsidiary
Mima Filins Sprl 0.00 0.37
Stapak India Private Limited Associate Company 24659 164.25
Total 4,837.37 4,780.79
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Signode India Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

(i} Revenue from operations

(i lakhs)

Name of rclated party

Relationship

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

| Signode Enptrecred Products-Glenview Fellow Subsidiary 2,113,17 177512
Signodie Kabushik: Kaishi- dapian Fellow Subsidiary 2,051.68 2316
Sinode Engihaered Paciaging Solulions Feliow Subsidiary 1,848.30| 2,804 01
Signade Netherlands [Earliar Dacro] -ellow Subsidiary 1,274.91 991 32
Signode Industrial Group Mexico 8 DE RL DE CV Fellow Subsidiary 1,212.33 656 31
Signode Syslem GMBH o Fellow Subsidiary 705.00 182 05
Signode Syslem Packaging GMEBYH & Co KG Fellow Subsidiary 615.75 1.151.52
Signads Korea Inc -Korea Fellow Subsidiary 27178 2615
Signode Singapore Pte l1d-Singopare Feliow Subsidiary 214.56 176.6C
Signode Metals Europe- Gorminy Feilow Subsidiary 214.26 41 80
Signode Packaging Sysien Limited Kenya Fellow Subsidiary 205.82 314 40
Oranpack{ Signods Industrial Group- Packaging Systems
turapas) - Dietikon Feliow Subsidiary 205.28 156 84
Signada Packaging (Qinpdac) Co , Ld-Qingtlao Feliow Subsidiary 203,58 132.50
Signode Ausiralia Fellow Subsidiary 89.62 27033
Signode Service Business - Glenview Fellow Subsidiary 66.95 5210
Signode International Holdings LLC - Talchung Fellow Subsidiary 50.06 460
Signoda \ndustrial Group LLC - Glenview Fellow Subsidiary 25.59 413
Slgnede Packaging Group (Malaysia Sdn Bhd) Fellow Subsidiary 9.65 37.46
SPG Packaaing Systems GMBH - Hilden Fellow Subsidiary 6.07 14,91
Signada Thailand Lid - Thailand Fellow Subsidiary 5.89 106.93
Signode New Zealand Fellow Subsidiary 3.77 2.94
Signode Hong Kong Limited Fellow Subsidiary 0.21 036
Stopak India Private Limited Assaciate Company 5.00 5.27
Total 11,399.22 §,930.82
(iii) Reimbursement of Expenditure from

(T in fakhs)

Name of related party

Relationship

For the year ended

tarch 31, 2020

For the year ended

March 31, 2019

SPG Packaging UK Ltd - Burntwood Fellow Subsidiary 30.28 33,38
(iv) Reimbursement of Expenditure to
(Z In lakhs)
|Name of related party Relalionship For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Fallow Subsidiary 5383 43.30

signode Netherlands [Earlier Dacro B.V]

{v) Services received

(¥ 11t lakhs)

Name of related party

Relationship

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31. 2019

Signade System Gmbh

Fellow Subsidiary

3851

(vi) Post employment benefit plan for the benefitted employees - Contribution to funds

(Z in lakhs)

Name of related parly

Relationship

For the year ended
March 31. 2020

For the year ended
March 31. 2019

Sigriode India Gratuity Trus

Trust

208.66

451 67

Slgnuie India Superannuation Trust

Trust

78G9

8679
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Signode India Limited

Notes furming part of the standalone financial statements

(vii) Sihare Buyback

Name of related party

.‘Raationship

“For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Strapex Holdings Limited

[Holding company

(viii) Payment to Key Management Personnel |

10,650 00

The remuneration of the direclors and other members of key management persannei during the year was as follows

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

= March 31. 2020 March31.2019
Short-lerm benefits 892 63 1,018 72
Share-based payments/Benus 280.71 290.80
Total* 1,173.34 1,309.52

(¥ in lakhs})

myar_ended
___March 31, 2019
27,000 GO

*Provision for incremental gratuity liability and leave encashment for the current year in respect of directors has not been considered above, since the
provision is based on a actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

¢) Related party balances outstanding as at year end !

Payables.
(% in fakhs)
Name of related party Relationship As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Signode Industrial Group Gmbh Feliow Subsidiary 247.68
Signode Korea Inc el 203.40 25.10
Signode Engineered Products Fellow Subsidiary 196.99 202,84
Caretex Asia Company Limited Fellow Subsitiary 12368 54.12
Signode Export & Distributor Service Fellow Subsidiary 89.20 42.69
Signode Kabushiki Kaisha NEliGEE b Aty 85.59 168.84
Muller Load Containment Solutions Fellow Subsidiary 59,67 31.34
SPG Packaging Systems Group Gmbh [SlceSEEEraly 58.68 2258
Signode Packaging (Qingdao) co Ltd Fellow Subsidiary 57.85 0.48
Signode System Europe Fellow Subsidiary 52.08 0.85
Signode Netherlands (Earlier Dacro) Fellow Subsidiary 26.73 21.53
OY M Haloila AB frslles, Subsidiary 2235 4237
P S Metal Plastik Sanayt Cember Ve Pak.SistIm] Ve Fellow Subsidlary
Tic.A.S. 12.05
Haloila Bulgaria Ecod Feliow Subsidiary 10.92 17.62
Sterfast Warehouse Automation Fellow Subsidiary 8.60
Signode Industrial Group LLC Fellow Subsidiary 5.50
Signode Syslem Packaging Gmbh & Co Fellow Subsidiary 5.30 105,01
Josef Kihlberg AB Fellow Subsidiary 1.95 0.33
Loveshaw Corporation Fellow Subsidiary 1.25 7.86
Signode System Gmbh: Fellow Subsidiary 0.22
Stopak India Private Limited Associate Subsidiary 84,12 44,56
Total 1,353.61 788,54

)
3040268 /¢ “°‘q§
* Hyderabad *

——

<




Sianode India Limited

Notes forming patt of the standatane tinancial statements

Receivables

Name of related party Relationship As at As at

o Margh31.2020 | Maich31.2019
Sanace Industrial Group Mexico S DG RL DE CV Fetlow Subsidiary 1,276.38 591.70
Signnice Syatam Gmbh - Getmany ARIEESTRSE 786.69 141.49
Signode Engiresred Progucls Glanview Fellow Subsidiary 706.04 16.75
Signode System Packaging GMBH & Co KG Fellow Subsidiary 638.30 833.12
Signode Engineered Packaging Solulions Fellow Subsidiary 419.29 469.77
Signode Korea Inc Fellow Subsidiary 205.25 1978
Sigrode Netherlands (Earlier Dacro) Fellow Subsidiary - 111.43 157.34
Orgapack( Slgnode Indusiriai Group- Packaging Systems Fi| Fellow Subsidiary 108.65 53.41
Signode Melals Europe Fellow Subs:diary 40,47 36.00
Signode Packaging (Qingdao) Co Lid - Ghing Fellow Subsidiary 36.82 65.74
Signode Australia Fellow Subsidiary 3071 17.98
Signode Packaging System Limited Kenya Fellow Subsidiary 23.86 108.84
Signode Singapore Ple Lid-Singapore Fellow Subsidiary 22.61 435
Signode Mexico S de R.L. de GV Fellow Subsidiary 19.89 267
Signode Service Business Fellow Subsidiary 15.30 13.20
Signade Kabushiki Kaisha-Japan Fellow Subsidiary 14.73 2.63
SPG Packaging UK Ltd - Burntwood Fellow Subsidiary 7.76 8.92
SPG Packaging Systems GMBH - Hilden Fellow Subsidiary 6.45 6.90
Slgnode Systems (Thailand) Lid - Rayong Fellow Subsidiary 2.06 0.87
Signode Packaging Group Malaysia Fellow Subsidiary 1.77 12.42
Signode New Zealand Fellow Subsidiary 0.71 0.85
Loveshaw - South Canaan Fellow Subsidiary 0.21
Stopak India Private Limited Associate Company 0.73 148
Total 4,475.87 2,566.41

The transaclions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those thal prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and inlerest free and setilement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees proviced or received for any relaled party

receivables or payables

lnvestments

Name of related party Relationship For the year ended For the year ended
b 20 March 31, 2018

Stopak India Private Limited Asgsociale 3,10510 3,106.10

i —
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Signode (ndia Limited
Notes formileg part of (he standalone financial slataments

37, Disclosures as requlred under, “Emplayee Benefils”
Defined contribullon plans

The Company's conlritulicn 1o provident fund super:
as an expense based o the amaunt of coalribution renuired ta be inade &i

Lon fuikd anc errployee siale insurance schieme gre Cons cered &5 defined conti
nd when sasvices are randered by tho e

Total

Conteibation 1o Provident and otlier funds. 2018-20 2018-18
il 482 54
Empioyers’ Cenlribuiion L Gther Funds 164 96
- = 644.46

Defincd benefil plans

tun plans and are charged

Tise Company has a defited benefil gratuity plan Every employee who has completed five yeass or more of service gets a graitily on departure at 15 days salary (lasl

trawn s #oryj for @ach completed year of service Tho schemeis fundec

Consequent (o the application of Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee Benefils" ail employee benefils have been delormined in accordance wilh the Standard

a) Disclosures requlred for Gratully In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee Benefits™ are set out In the table below:

(1) Amount to be recognised in Balance sheet

{2 bn lakdis)
|Particulars As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2018
ationi 2,708.59 7 397 0%
(2,605 3% (2 403 B8}
101 26 {5 93]
.26
- - B E
401.26 €5.83)
{lla) Exp to be recognised In the of Profit and Loss
¥ in bk
For the year ended or e year ende|
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 34, 2018
Carrord Service Cost 158.31 138 76
Trierest on pet dofined tonglit dnbady! [asasl) {542} 1227
Total expense charge to profit and loss account 154,89 151.03
{lib) Amount recorded In other comprehensive Income (OCI)
(¥ In Yakdin}
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
ricuars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
Remessramins datg i peacd dua to
Cohanges In tnencia’ v i 128 11 4o 30
Changes in damoegraghic aspumptions - (010)
Exghisth ad)ustmatits 30.40 12 48
Actual felum on plin Besets Jess riereslon plan psses 1.44 (15 34)
Tatal amount recognised In OC! 160.96 96,32

W 304026¢ 163




{:i) Reconcillation of Benefit Obligatior: and Flan Assets for the period

o — — B i+ v laknn)
Particulars For lie year ended Forihe year caded
T - March 31, 2i170 March 31. 2019 |

Shangis in Celined Nenelll Ouligation o
_Qpuning Dellped Denelit Ghllyation =
Cllieror] Sarve

Cloning Dofined Bonotit Obligation e 3007 .06 |
Changp in Faly Valio of Ardels - = = |
_Opoulng Falr vitue of Plon Asseis = G
Conlribulions by Employer A5 07
| Interas! on plar: assels = Feh
Remeasurements dug lo
Acilnl obtirn o plan annets joy larest on.pisn assern 1144} . 16 34
Benedits Fad {160 Aa) KL
2.600.33 Z,403.58

Tloning Falr Valuz of Plan Assels

(v} Expecled contrbution to the fund in the next year

For the yearended | For Ihe year ended |

Gaticuiae March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
Gratuity 60.00 €0.00
{v) Asset Informatlan

(2 i akihin]

Category of Assets (% Allocation) Percentane Amaount

As at As dt
R a2 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Insurer Managed Funds 100% 160% 2608 35 3455 an

{vi) Principal Actuarial Assumptions

As at As wt
Particulars March 34, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount Rala (p.a) 660% 7 45%
Expecled Rale of Relun on Plan Assets (p.a ) 6.60% 7 45%
Salary Escalation Rale (pa ) B 50y B GO
Retirement Age EE
|Mnﬂalil Tabie ALK (£002-18) LN
mc‘l_e!d BvVerage ramaining working lives of
employees (years) 60
Leavino Service Rutes {p.a.) Rates {p.a.}
21-30 12 00% 19 00%
31-40 2.00% 9 00%
47-50 A 007% 3.00%
31 & Apave 15.00% 15 00%

(vii} Maturity profile of defined benefit obllgation

Asat Asat
Jdea March .'.I:l', 2020 Maeeh 31, 2018

Eapected bensfits for year 1 I ATLEE 41326

tiel el il for year 2 JoB 2 Hu. it

Exnacied benelits fur yeor 3 I7007 Tune

ected beniefils for yoar 4 34132 Pl

e borilils for G 32T EIED)
Expecing bannfits for yew 6 296407 | 5 |

venafits for year 7 10220 25897

ed bermfits for yiar B {7582 7925

venalits for year 8 15183 16208

Eapecto Lty fup yoae 10 i above 1.681.83 161017

Note:

a) The eslimate of fulure salery increases considered. takes inle account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other relevant faclors




{vllf) Senslitivity Analysis
rificant assumplions, would be as under

Sensilivity of grass defined benalit obiigallon as menliones abave, i case of cnange

o — == ) o 1w dpkhnd

For the year ended For lhe yedr ended
| March M. 2020 March 31, 2018
Discount rate
(i) Discount rale -50 basis point 823z 77 4%
{i) Discount rate +$0 basis polnl 77 5 {67821
Salary ncrease rate
(1t rate -50 basis paint {76 53) i£699;
o B0 46 F1.64 |

11} rate +5C basis poirt
ross defined benefil obligalion in isolation and assuming there are no othet changes in merket

These sensitivilias have baen calculaled to show the movemert in g
tha methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensilivity analyses

condilions at the accounting dale There have been no changes from tha pravious periods in

b) Long term Compensated Absences
It Includes sarnad (eave and sick laave The presert valua of compansated absences and tha related current service cosl sre measured using the projected unil credit

method with acluasial valuation being carrled al each balance sheel date.

{1} Amount to be recognised In Balance sheet
{8 I Jakhs)
Azl Mamh 31, 2020 | Ax ot March 31, 2010 |
1,100 LEs e
(1mE B4 {1,817 30
e 5 167
g0 LG7
1343
[
EDE]




Signode India Limited

Notes forrning pari of the standalenc financial statements

33, Financlal instruments

Financial assets and liabilities:

the accointing classiflication of each category of financial instruments. their varrying amounts and fair vaiue amounts are set oul below:

(& in bakhs)
= As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
Financial assets Level Fair value Amortised cost Total Fair Fairvalue Amortised Total Fair
through OCI Value through OCi cost Value
Inveslments 3 1658 1.65 165 1.865
Trade and olher receivables 3 30,616 19 30,616 18 28,309.01 28,308 01
Otker financial assets 3 2,220 34 2,220 34 223512 2,23512
Cash and cash equivalents 3 8,628 43 8.629 43 3.139 18 3,139 15
As at March 31,2020 As al March 31,2019 q
Financial liabilities Level Fair value  Amortised cost Total Fair Fair value Amortised Total Fair
through OCI Value through OCi cost Value
Barrowings 3 2,835 60 2,835 60 5,169.10 5189 10
Trade payables 3 . 27,505 72 27,505 72 20,229.16 20,229 16
Other financial liabitities 3] 909.56 909.56 1.240 76 124076
Leuse linbillies 3 Fau.a1 74881 .

34. Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company's principal financial liabililies comprise retention money payable, trade and other payables, security deposits, book overdrafl and short
term borrowings. The Company's principal financial assets include Investments, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute ils business strategies. The Company is exposed to market
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the
appropriate financial fisk governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board cf Directors and Audit Committee. This process
provides assurance to Company's senior management that the Company's financlal risk-taking aclivilies are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company policies and Company risk objective.

The Board of Directars reviews and agrees palicies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

(A) Market risk

Market risk is the risk 1hat the fair vaiue of fultre cash flows of a financia instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk, Financial
Instruments affected by market risks include deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payables, The sensitivity analyses in the
following seciions relate to the position as at March 31, 2020 The analysis exclude the impact of movements in markel variables on: the carrying
values of graluity, pension obligation and other post-relirement cbligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities The sensitivily of the
ralevant Profil and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks This is based on the financial asseis and financiat
liabitities held as of March 31, 2020

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate becatise of changes in foreign exchange
rates The Company exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company operating activities (when revenue or
expense is denominated in foreign curfency) Foreign currency exchange rale exposure is balanced by purchasing of goods from lhe respective
countries The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows establish risk management policies.

Foreign currency exposures recognised by the Conspany that have not been hedged by a derivative inslrument or otherwise are shown below

P
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Slgnode India Limited
Notes forming pari of the siandalone financial statemenis

34, FInanclal risk management objectives and pollcies (cont.):
The yoar enid foreign currency exposuraes lhat have nol been hedged by a derivative instrumenl or otherwise are givan below:
a) Foreign currancy risk exposure:

Trade receivables in foreign currency:

o As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
SumEngy € in lakhs Foreign Gurreney In takhs € In lakhs Foreign Gurrancy
In lnkhe
usD a - 4694 82 6231 3,235.76 4676
EURO 1,206.2% 14 55 515 58 669
Trade payables In forelgn currency:
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2012
COnEncy ¥in lakhs Forelgn Currency In lakhs €in lakhs ForeigniGyitincy
In lakhs
usD 760.G7 1011 656 00 9.52
EURO 23308 2.81 129.60 187
GBP 0.37 000 128 0.02
CHF 247 68 316 105.01 151
JYP 10,23 1539 5.81 9.01
c) Sensitivity
Wilh respect lo the ebove unhedged exposure the sensitivity is as follows:
w impactan PET
Forelgn Currency {FC) Sensitivity March 31, 2020 March 31, 2098
Einfokhs Cin lakhs
EAUSD-Increase/(decranse) by 5% 186,74 128,83
®/EURO-ncrease/(decrease) by 5% 48,66 19.50
%/CHF-Increase{decrease) by 5% (12.38) (5.25)
v/GBP-increase(decrease) by 6% {0.02) (0 06)
P LAY inas {decroiat) by 5% {0.81) {0.29)
Tatal Impact 23249 14279

W 304026863
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({B) Credit risk

Credit risk is he fisk (hat courierpady will nal meet ils cbiigations under a financiel instiment or customer conlracl, leading ie a financial loss The Company
is exposed lo credd risk from ils operating activilies (pdmarily trads receivables), inciuding deposits with banks and financiel inslilutions, foreign exchange
transaclions and other financial instrumonts

C) Liquidity risk

Licjuidity sk is datirod as the rsk Tral the Company wil net ba atila to satlle of meal its abiflgatians on lime o« 3l reasenable pres The Company's ctijective
I 1o al all limos monten optimum levels of hquidity to meel L8 cash and Lty fogurenanin Ttve Colipany closoly Mo fla’ hepicity periicn ana
drpioys @ robust cash manegemant system |8 maintans adoquate soulce ! (eEnel oy e st ol it doem bk depasds ard el coodd 1; el
Processes and pollcis rolated 10 such fsks aie ovesein by Lahar mn ol Madhgomadnt inoniors e Gompay s hausdly poybon i

faracasts on W basis of expected cash lBwe Tne Company assessed the cancerirabon of risk with respect o its dabl and conciuded Il 1o 8 be'ow

Tria tables balow Bnalyse the Company a finine af assets iito relevant maturity groupings Lztad on Whair expecled maturtas o all non danyvauve finarcia
annals ard financa labilties. The amoun! drcic-ed in Ihe table are the conlractual undiscisunled cash low. Balances due within 12 monlhs equal Ihair
carrying balsnces as the impact of discaunting ls not signiflcanl :

[ In lakhs}
Contractial maturities of financhl labliities Less than 6 month & months to 12 months More than 1 year Total
March 31, 2020
Borrowlings 283580 2,835.60
Trade payables 27,505 72 . 27 50572
Other financial liabillties 908 56 - 908 56
Lease liabllities 182 10 217.98 346.83 749 91
Total Financlal llabililes 31,432.98 217.98 349.83 32,000.79
March 31, 2019
Borrowings 5028 16 70.41 189.10 c,288.67
Trade payables 20,229.16 : 20,229 16
Other financial labllities 1.240.75 124075
Total Fli Tal liabilitics 26,499.07 70.41 182.10 26,758.58

D} Interest rate risk axposure
The exposure of the Company's borowing 1o inlerest rate change at the end of the reporting period are ac follows. The Company does not has any variable
rate borrowings,

(¥ In lakhs)
Nature of borrowingu Au at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2018
EIn lakhs ¥ in lakhs
Fixed rate borrowings
Shorl lerm 2,835,60 5,000.00
Total Fixed rate borrowings 2,835.60 6,000.00

35. Capital Managemant
For {ha plirpeses of Company tapial mansgement, Capiial inclutes equ iy attributatile to (hs equily holders of the Company and all other equily reserves
The grimary objactive of the Company's capital managament Is to ensute fhat it malntaine an efficiant capital structure and maxim(ze shareholkder valua.
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Bignode India Limited
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

36. Corporate Social Respousibility (CSR) Expense

Prescnbed USRK expsndilure ag per Section 135 of the Conipanies Act, 2012

Details of CSR speni during the financial year

(¥ in Jikhis)
Particulars For the year endul For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(=} loll amount Lo be gpant duting the year 187 26 ME6?
{b) Actual spent during ihie ysar " 4872 3129
{c} Amount unspen! (a-b} 108 63 178 38
Amouril paid for
- acquisition/canstruction of assets :
- other purposes 5872 3729

37. Segment Information

Primary Segment

Based on the gulding ptinciples given in Ind AS- 108 on "Operating segments”, the Company's busingss aclivily falls within a single operaling
segment viz. “Industrial Packaging" Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS- 108 are not applicable.

Geographical Segments
Since the Group's activilies/operalions are primarily within the country and considenng the nature of products/services it ceals in, the risks and
relurns are same and as such there is only one geographical segment.

. Geographical Information

Revenue from external custorners: The Company's revenue from external customers basis lacation of the cusiomer are as under :

(¥ in lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
- March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Within India 1,14 548 47 1.16,690.42
QOutside India 18,430 88 18,141 11
Total 1,32,979.36 1,34.831.63

Information about major customer
There is no single customer who contributed 10% or more of the Company's revenue during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019

38 The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documenls as required by the transfer pricing
lenistation under Seclions 92-82F of the Income-dax Act, 1961 Since the low reguires existence of such Information and dacumentation o be
contemporanaoiis in nature, the Company is I the procass of updating the documentation for the internalional ransactions entered into with the
sssosialed entefprises during the financial year and expects such recards to be In existence lstest by such dale as required under law. The
management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at armi's length and the transfer pricing legisialion under Section 92-92F of the
income-tax Act, 1961 will nol have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision of
taxation, if any

38, Impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the business:

The spreard af COVID-19 has sevalely impactad businesses around the globe Inmany countries, inchiding India, there has been severe disruption
10 regular business operaflons dué Lo lock:-dawis, distuptions in transporlation, supply chain, travel bans, quarantings, social distancing and oths
emergency measures The Company | engaged In the business ol Industiial packaging and manufacture of sirap, sireich, protective packaging,
patkaging tools and equipment ihat are used to apply the bulk packaging materials

Management has performed a detailéd assassment of the impact of the autbtaak of Corunavirus (COVID-18) of business cperations, and
coicluded Ihat no adjustments are required in the finandial statements to the carrying valle of progarly, plant and eguipment, geotwill, inventories,
trade receivables and other assets of the company As a result of lockdowr the velumes duting the lnckdown paniod have boon jmpacied The
Company is monltoring the situation closely and operalions are being resumed in a phased manrer taking into account directives from {he
Governmen! However, the situation with GOVID-19 is slill evolving and the various preventive measures laken by the Government of India are stili
in farce, leading 1o a highly uncerta:n economic environment. Due to these circumstances, Management's assessment of {he impact on the
subseqient period is dependent upon circumstances as they evolve
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40 Subsaquent lo year end puisuant lo shareholder's approval via resoluticn dated 8, 2020 the company has &cguired remairnng 69 44%
Stopak Inia Private Limiled {i.e , 387,500 shares's @ 2666 per share amounting lo Rs. 10 33075 lakhs). Accordingly w e f August 28,
e associate company has hecame wholly owned subsidiary of the cempany.
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